
 

Borough of Telford and Wrekin 

Business and Finance Scrutiny Committee 

Wednesday 17 September 2025 

6.00 pm 

Council Chamber, Third Floor, Southwater One, Telford, TF3 4JG 

   

 

Democratic Services: 

 

Paige Starkey 01952 380110 

Media Enquiries: 

 

Corporate Communications 01952 382406 

 

Committee Members: 

 

Councillors N A M England (Chair), N Page (Vice-Chair), 

J Kaur, L Lewis, G Luter, S Syrda and R Tyrrell 

 
 Agenda Page 

 
1.0   Apologies for Absence 

 
 

2.0   Declarations of Interest 
 

 

3.0   Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting held on 25 June 2025. 
 

3 - 6 

4.0   Financial Monitoring 2025/26 
 
To receive a report on the Council’s Financial Monitoring position for 
2025/26. 
 

7 - 24 

5.0   Work Programme Review 
 
To review the updated Work Programme for the Business & Finance 
Scrutiny Committee. 
 

25 - 32 

6.0   Chair's Update 
 

 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 

If you are reading these papers on an electronic device you have saved the Council 
£15.22 and saved 6.1kg of CO2, based on average agenda printing costs for the 2022/23 
municipal year. 

Page 2



 

 

BUSINESS AND FINANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Business and Finance Scrutiny Committee 
held on Wednesday 25 June 2025 at 6.00 pm in the Council Chamber, 

Third Floor, Southwater One, Telford, TF3 4JG 
 

 
Present: Councillors N A M England (Chair), N Page (Vice-Chair), 

J Kaur, G Luter, S Syrda and R Tyrrell.  
 
Also Present: Councillor R A Overton (Deputy Leader and Cabinet 

Member: Highways, Housing & Enforcement) 
  

 
In Attendance:  K Callis (Housing Investment Programme Service 

Delivery Manager), J Dunn (Director: Prosperity & 
Investment), A Lowe (Director: Policy & Governance) and 
P Starkey (Senior Democracy Officer (Scrutiny)) 

 
Apologies:   Councillor L Lewis 
 
BFSC1 Declarations of Interest 
 
None.  
 
BFSC2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
RESOLVED – that the minutes of the meeting held on 7 May 2025 be 
confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 
BFSC3 Terms of Reference 2025/2026 
 
The Director: Policy & Governance presented the Business & Finance 
Committee Terms of Reference for the 2025/26 municipal year.  
 
Members heard that each council Committee had been granted delegated 
authority to approve their own terms of reference at the Annual Council 
Meeting in May 2025.  
 
It was noted that there were no proposed changes. 
 
RESOLVED – that the Terms of Reference set out in Appendix A of the 
report be approved. 
 
BFSC4 Business & Finance Scrutiny Work Programme 2025/26 
 
The Director: Policy & Governance presented the draft Business & Finance 
Scrutiny Committee Work Programme for the 2025/26 municipal year. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 

 

Members heard that the work programming process had commenced early in 
the calendar year and included a period of consultation with Council officers, 
external Partners and elected Members. Suggestions put forward for the work 
programme had been assessed against the Council’s priorities before being 
put forward for consideration by the Scrutiny Management Board.  
 
The proposed work programme spanned across a period of two years to offer 
flexibility to accommodate ad hoc items. The work programme featured 
several standing items including an annual update on the Council’s Housing 
Investment Programme, the Medium-Term Financial Strategy and the Telford 
Land Deal. There were several new inclusions for the work programme such 
as a focus on the Growth Fund and Council’s property investment portfolio, 
the regeneration of Wellington Market and a review of the Council’s leisure 
services offer.  
 
RESOLVED – that the work programme for 2025/26 be approved. 
 
BFSC5 Housing Investment Programme Update 
 
The Service Delivery Manager: Housing Investment Programme presented an 
update on the Housing Investment Programme, outlining progress made 
during the 2024/25 financial year.  
 
The Housing Investment Programme was first established in 2015 to meet 
identified housing need through the delivery of a portfolio of properties for 
predominantly private rent and was in its tenth year of operation. Whilst the 
financial and housing markets had seen greater stability over the last 12 
months, challenges remained for the construction industry. High interest rates 
continued to affect viability appraisals and although construction costs had 
levelled off, previous price increases remained embedded. Private rents 
across the Borough had risen on average by 7.9% in the last year, while 
house prices continued to climb despite a 19.4% drop in sales, reflecting 
national trends. Legislative changes were also highlighted, including the 
Building Safety Act 2022, which imposed new safety requirements in 
response to the Grenfell Tower fire and the anticipated Renters Reform Bill, 
expected to be in place by the end of 2025, which would enhance tenant 
protections. 
 
Members heard that Nuplace’s housing portfolio had significantly grown with a 
total of 608 homes completed by March 2025 and a further 276 more homes 
in development. Of these, 76 were affordable homes offered at discounted 
rents, with an additional 486 affordable dwellings delivered in partnership with 
housing associations. The programme continued to focus on sustainability, 
with low-carbon homes featuring PV panels, battery storage, air source heat 
pump technology and EV charging points. There had also been a strong 
emphasis on accessible and adaptable accommodation, particularly for 
residents over 55 or with specific needs and at the time of the meeting, 
approximately 1,500 people were living in Nuplace properties. 
 

Page 4



 

 

The presentation detailed several completed and ongoing schemes, including 
Wild Walk in Muxton, New College in Wellington, Limes Walk in Oakengates, 
Walker Street in Wellington, The Gower in St Georges respectively and 
Station Quarter in Telford Town Centre. At the time of the meeting, the 
developments had regenerated around 48 acres of brownfield land and 
refurbished nearly 5,000 sqm of redundant space.  
 
Established in June 2021, the Telford & Wrekin Homes programme had 
gathered pace with a further 32 homes acquired in the last year, bringing the 
total to 56 properties acquired and refurbished to support broader Council 
objectives such as move-on accommodation and fostering schemes.  
 
Members heard about the former Phoenix site in Dawley; a new development 
earmarked for 212 new homes including 51 new homes and was subject to a 
live planning application with a decision anticipated in Autumn 2025.  
 
Operational improvements included the implementation of the “One Housing” 
system to enhance tenancy management and the expansion of the Property 
Management Team. Tenant satisfaction had remained high, with 79% of 
tenants having moved from within the Borough, 74% viewing their Nuplace 
home as a “forever home” and 86% willing to recommend Nuplace. Tenants 
valued the security of tenure, responsive service and the professionalism of 
staff. 
 
Social value activity had focussed on corporate objectives of employment and 
training, as well as delivering benefits to the community within the locality of 
Nuplace’s development sites, with outcomes achieved over the previous 12 
months including 93 hours of engagement with schools and care leavers, 210 
hours of employability support, 36 weeks of work experience, 55 
apprenticeships and 22 new jobs created.  
 
The draft outturn for 2024/25 showed strong performance for the scheme and 
the number of lettings available. For the 2024/25 financial year, voids had 
remained low at 0.84% which was below the business model assumption of 
3%. The amount of turnover had increased to £5m and profit before interest 
and tax had risen to £3.2m. After interest, the total profit stood at £448k, with 
a £302k dividend returned to support frontline services. Against the £93m 
invested into the scheme, the Nuplace asset portfolio was valued at 
£122.84m, representing a 31% capital increase.  
 
In response to questions raised relating to the financial return of Nuplace and 
the programme’s primary objective, the Director: Prosperity & Investment 
stated that Nuplace had delivered significantly more than 1% return when 
capital growth was considered and a £30m increase in asset value. The main 
objective of the programme was to provide high quality private and affordable 
housing with funds set aside for maintenance and to ensure long term 
sustainability.  
 
The Service Delivery Manager: Housing Investment Programme commented 
on the partnership working that had taken place with the Wrekin Housing 

Page 5



 

 

Group (WHG) as a housing association to deliver a mixture of tenure offers 
including both private and affordable rent. The Wrekin Housing Group had 
been recognised as a reliable landlord with strong capabilities in both 
development and tenancy management. Homes delivered as part of the 
Telford & Wrekin Homes Programme had been acquired from Wrekin Housing 
Group at favourable rates and refurbishment of the properties had taken place 
post-acquisition helping to prevent homes from being sold at auction. 
 
In response to questions asked around the impact of Nuplace on local 
business continuity and the supply chain, the Service Delivery Manager: 
Housing Investment Programme advised that the local supply chain was 
monitored on a scheme by scheme basis and each scheme included metrics 
for local investment agreed in advance, with contractors expected to report on 
spend within the Borough and a 25 mile radius. Approximately 80% of spend 
had occurred locally, contributing significantly to local employment and 
business growth.  
 
As part of the discussion, Members highlighted the broader benefits of 
Nuplace and the importance of creating council-owned assets. It was 
suggested that figures relating to rental comparisons be included in future 
reports.  
 
 
BFSC6 Chair's Update 
 
The Chair thanked Members for their participation in the first meeting and 
looked forward to working with them during the municipal year. 
 
The meeting ended at 6.46 pm 

 
Chairman:   

 
Date: 

 
Wednesday 17 September 2025 

 

Page 6



 

Borough of Telford and Wrekin 

Cabinet 

17 July 2025 

2025/26 Financial Monitoring Report 

 
Cabinet Member: Cllr Zona Hannington - Cabinet Member: Finance, 

Governance and Customer Services 

Lead Director: Michelle Brockway -  Director: Finance, People and IDT 

Service Area: Finance, People and IDT 

Report Author: Pauline Harris – Finance Manager 

Officer Contact 
Details: 

Tel: 01952 383701 Email: pauline.harris@telford.gov.uk 

Wards Affected: All Wards 

Key Decision: Key Decision 

Forward Plan: 21 May 2025 

Report considered by: SMT – 17 June 2025 

Business Briefing – 26 June 2025 

Cabinet – 17 July 2025 

Full Council – 17 July 2025 

 

 

1.0 Recommendations for Decision/Noting 

It is recommended that Cabinet: 

 
1.1 Notes the 2025/26 revenue budget position, which shows that the Council is 

projecting to be within budget at year end, without having to use the Budget Strategy 
or General Fund reserves;  

1.2 Notes the position in relation to capital spend; and recommends that Full Council 
approve the changes to the Capital programme detailed in Appendix C and all 
associated changes to the Medium Term Financial Strategy, including Treasury and 
Prudential Indicators 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



2025/26 Financial Monitoring Report 
 

2 

 

1.3 Notes the collection rates for NNDR, council tax and sales ledger. 

It is recommended that Council: 

 
1.4 Notes the 2025/26 revenue budget position, which shows that the Council is 

projecting to be within budget at year end, without having to use the Budget Strategy 
or General Fund reserves;  

1.5 Notes the position in relation to capital spend and approves the changes to the 
Capital programme detailed in Appendix C and all associated changes to the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy, including Treasury and Prudential Indicators. 

1.6 Notes the collection rates for NNDR, council tax and sales ledger. 
 

2.0 Purpose of Report 

2.1 To provide Cabinet with the latest financial monitoring position for the year relating 
to: the revenue budget, capital programme and income collection. 

 
3.0 Background 

3.1 The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 2025/26 to 2028/29 was approved at 
Full Council on 27 February 2025, which included the 2025/26 revenue budget and 
medium term capital programme. Since the MTFS was approved, the economic 
climate has continued to be challenging with cost and demand pressures being 
experienced, particularly in relation to the provision of Adult Social Care. 

3.2 Good financial management is an essential element of good governance and long-
term service planning which are critical to ensuring that local service provision is 
sustainable and the use of resources is maximised in order to meet the needs of our 
residents. 

3.3 Financial management is the responsibility of budget holders and is supported by 
Finance staff using a risk-based approach: more focus is given to higher risk areas 
(high value/more volatile) whilst less frequent financial monitoring is undertaken on 
budgets deemed to be medium to lower risk.  Financial monitoring provides Cabinet 
and Senior Management Team with a focussed view on the Council’s financial 
performance, to inform and support decision making and to ensure financial 
sustainability. 

3.4 This Financial Monitoring Report for 2025/26 provides the latest projections in 
relation to the projected outturn position i.e. how projected net revenue spend 
compares to the budget set for the year - progress against the approved 2025/26 
capital programme - the key issues to be highlighted; together with a summary of 
collection information in relation to Council Tax, Business Rates and Sales Ledger 
income.   

3.5 The Government has committed to reforming the Local Government Finance 
System with the intention that 2026/27 will be the first year of a new funding regime 
for Local Authorities.  The new system will include an updated assessment of 
relative needs and resources and a reset of the Business Rates Retention Scheme.  

Page 8



2025/26 Financial Monitoring Report 
 

3 

 

While there will be some transitional measures to smooth the impact of changes, 
the detailed implications for individual authorities are unlikely to be known until 
December 2025.  As part of the process, a consultation was launched in June: The 
Fair Funding Review, which is seeking views on determining new funding allocations 
for local authorities and outlines proposals to update the overall funding system.  
This will feed into a Policy Statement to be published in the Autumn.  This context 
makes financial planning extremely challenging. The funding outlook for the medium 
term therefore remains very uncertain and will clearly continue to be challenging, 
particularly given the Council has already had to deliver £181.7m ongoing budget 
savings since 2009/10. 

3.6 There is a statutory duty for local authorities to set a balanced and robust budget 
each financial year and to take timely action to address financial pressures.  In order 
to support unforeseen pressures the approved budget for 2025/26 includes 
contingencies of £7.2m (£3.95m General contingency and £3.25m specific 
contingencies including £2m for Adult Social Care).  This supports the Council’s  aim 
to continue to deliver quality services whilst ensuring a balanced budget. 

4.0 Summary of main proposals 

4.1.1 Nationally, Councils continue to face extreme challenges in 2025/26 with 
unprecedented pressures driven by high costs and high demand for services – 
particularly Adult Social Care, Children’s Safeguarding and School Travel 
Assistance.   

4.1.2 On 11 June 2025 the Chancellor announced the Spending Review which set out 
budgets for all government departments for the period 2026/27 to 2028/29, and up 
to 2029/30 for capital investments. 

 
The Local Government settlement showed an additional £3.3 billion grant funding 
in real terms for local authorities in 2028/29 compared with 2023/24, resulting in an 
average overall real terms increase in local authority core spending power between 
2023/24 and 2028/29 of 3.1% per year. 
 
The key announcements relating to local government at a national level include, 
additional housing investment, early intervention funding for the prevention of 
homelessness, additional funding for Adult Social Care (via increases to NHS 
budgets), funding to transform Children’s Social Care, a SEND reform (with a White 
Paper due in the Autumn) and consolidation of the Household Support Fund into a 
new Crisis and Resilience Fund for households.. 
 
The Spending Review also reaffirmed the Government’s commitment to multi-year 
allocations and moving to  a more up-to-date assessment of each council’s needs 
and resources as part of the 2026/27 Local Government Finance Settlement. 
 
Overall, the Spending Review provides some additional investment for local 
government which is welcome however financial pressures will continue in 2025/26 
and detailed information for individual council is unlikely to be fully available until the 
Local Government Finance Settlement is announced in December 2025, and further 
detail relating to grant funding is available, to determine the implications for Telford 
& Wrekin Council.  

Page 9



2025/26 Financial Monitoring Report 
 

4 

 

4.1.3 Whilst inflation is expected to reduce in the medium term, current indicators show 
that the economy will be slower to recover than was expected when the Council’s 
budget was set.  In May 2025, CPI  was 3.4% which is above the Bank of England’s 
2% target.  The Bank of England reduced base rate from 4.5% in April to 4.25% in 
May but is still higher than was anticipated when the Council’s budget was set. 

4.1.4 Given these factors, monitoring for 2025/26 indicates a number of variations from 
the approved budget, notably relating to Adult Social Care where in order to meet 
the needs of the most vulnerable residents, additional investment is required.  

4.1.5  Strong financial management and prudent financial planning mean that the Council 
has budgeted contingencies in place, £3.95m General Contingency and £3.25m 
specific contingencies including £2m for Adult Social Care, to meet the financial 
pressures currently being projected.  This will ensure that the overall position will be 
within the budget set at year end.   

4.1.6 The Council has an excellent track record of strong financial management and 
Cabinet Members and budget holders will continue their work to manage budgets 
as effectively as possible during the year.  

4.1.7 Projections will continue to be refined as the year progresses.  Whilst extremely 
challenging, the Council’s aim is to continue to deliver quality services to the 
residents of the borough and protect critical front-line services.   

4.1.8 A summary of the current projection for the year end position is:- 

  £m 

Net Revenue Budget 167.640 

Projected Net Revenue Outturn  172.503 

Projected Pressures +4.863 

Use of One off Budgeted Contingency (earmarked 
for Social Care Pressures) 

-2.000 

Use of One off Budgeted Contingency (earmarked 
for general pressures) 

-0.750 

Use of General Budget Contingency -2.113 

Projected Year End Variance  
i.e. net spend will be within budget 

0.000 

4.1.9 There are a number of variations from the approved budget, detailed in Section 5.  
The key variance is Adult Social Care (ASC), with £5.6m additional investment 
currently being required relating to the cost of providing care packages across all 
client groups.  This includes the impact of market price increases, more complex 
needs, higher demand and longer periods of care being required; all of which are 
being analysed by the Service with the aim of refining projections and managing 
spend.  This is after additional net investment of £7.7m  into ASC in 2025/26 as part 
of the Medium Term Financial Strategy. 

 

 

Page 10



2025/26 Financial Monitoring Report 
 

5 

 

4.2 Capital 

The capital programme totals £138.6m for 2025/26 which includes all approvals 
since the budget was set.  Schemes are in progress and at the time of compiling 
this report spend is projected to be under budget which indicates that there is likely 
to be re-phasing into 2026/27 at year end. It is, however early in the year and the 
programme will continue to be monitored and updates brought in future reports. 

4.3 Corporate Income Collection 

Income collection rates are currently behind the targets set, however it is early in 
the year and work continues to actively pursue all income due.  Ultimately, all debt 
will be pursued and will continue to be collected after the end of the financial year 
with all appropriate recovery avenues being pursued. 

5.0 Additional Information 

5.1 The overall 2025/26 monitoring position against the budget is summarised in the 
table below: 

Service Area Budget Total 
Current 

Variation 

  £m £m 

Finance, People & IDT 18.836 0.000 

Policy & Governance 1.282 0.045 

      

Adult Social Care 77.235 5.569 

Housing, Commercial & Customer Services 6.253 0.000 

      

Children's Safeguarding & Family Support 49.565 (0.004) 

Education & Skills 14.308 0.483 

Health & Wellbeing 0.828 0.000 

      

Neighbourhood & Enforcement Services 31.612 0.001 

Prosperity & Investment (6.318) 0.000 

Council Wide (25.960) (1.231) 

Total Pressures  167.641        +4.863  

Use of Budgeted Contingencies  -4.863 

Projected Year End Position - Within Budget 0.000 

 

 

 

Page 11



2025/26 Financial Monitoring Report 
 

6 

 

5.2.1 Projected variances over £0.250m are highlighted below, all other variances over 
£50k are detailed in Appendix B.   

Service Area Variance 
£m 

Adult Social Care 
 
Longer Term Care Purchasing –expenditure relating to block 
and spot contracts continues to be under significant pressure. 
The trajectory of growth is being monitored closely.  The service 
continues to work on delivering care which maximises 
prevention and independence where possible. 
 
Income – anticipated to be higher than income targets 
 
My Options – in house purchasing  - the impact of increased 
demand and increased charges. 
 
Short-term Reablement Care & Prevention 
Work continues with the ICB to reduce the pressure on the Better 
Care Fund budget, this will be closely monitored through the year  
 

 
 

+5.370 
 
 
 
 
 

-0.433 
 

+0.950 

Children’s Safeguarding & Family Support 
 

 

Children in Care, Leaving Care Team & Speciality Services, 
Family Solutions: 

 
CIC placements, Post 18 Staying Put & Leaving Care 
Support – lower than budgeted costs which includes the 
full year impact of savings from the work with Impower 
and ongoing work on prevention, early intervention and 
review of placement costs. 
 

Homelessness – relates to homelessness accommodation 
costs  

 
 
 

-0.257 
 
 
 
 
 

+0.353 

Education & Skills 
 
Employee costs – additional costs due to inflationary pressures 
relating to historic teacher pension costs 
 

 
 

+0.268 
 

Council Wide -  various underspends, including higher than 
budgeted Business Rates Retention Section 31 grant and 
release of provision for savings which do not benefit general 
fund. 
  

-0.989 

 

 

Page 12



2025/26 Financial Monitoring Report 
 

7 

 

5.2.2 Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) 

Dedicated Schools Grant sits within Education & Skills and is monitored separately 
to the Council’s General Fund position shown in Section 5.1.  Excluding funds 
passed to academies and colleges, Dedicated Schools Grant totals £130m in 
2025/26.  DSG deficits are currently required to be held in a separate reserve in 
local authorities’ accounts.  

Telford & Wrekin’s DSG had a deficit of £4.66m at the end of 2024/25 which has 
carried forward into 2025/26.  This was made up of £1.82m deficit carried forward 
from 2023/24 plus the 2024/25 in year overspend of £2.84m.    

The deficit arises because of high needs budget pressures.  This is a national issue, 
illustrated by most upper tier Councils having a DSG deficit by the end of 2023/24 
which totals  £2.148bn nationally.  In order to alleviate pressure on the 2025/26 high 
needs budgets, Telford & Wrekin’s schools forum again agreed to transfer 0.5% of 
the schools block to high needs, amounting to £0.9m. This agreement illustrates the 
positive relationships with schools and other providers which are invaluable in 
assisting the Council to maintain budgetary control of DSG, whilst ensuring that we 
meet our responsibilities to young people.  
 
The increase in the Government’s 2025/26 high needs funding allocation to 
Councils, including Telford & Wrekin, is higher than in 2024/25, which will assist in 
meeting cost pressures. The Council has established a cost improvement plan to 
address high needs budget pressures and continues to work hard to tackle the high 
needs pressures in partnership with the Forum, schools and other providers of 
education.  However, with continuing growth in demand for high needs support, the 
budget situation will remain challenging in 2025/26. 
 
The way in which local authorities account for DSG deficits was altered in 
2020. DSG deficits are now required to be held in a separate reserve in local 
authorities’ accounts and is disregarded from the measure of local authority 
reserves. These regulations currently apply up to 31 March 2026.  The Government 
is proposing to extend this to March 2028 and will work with local authorities to 
manage DSG deficits.  Further detail is anticipated as part of the provisional Local 
Government Finance Settlement later in the year.   

The position is being closely monitored and updates will be included in future reports 
when more information is known. 

5.3 CONTINGENCIES, RESERVES & BALANCES 

5.3.1 The 2025/26 budget includes a general revenue contingency of £3.950m which is 
set aside to meet any unforeseen expenditure or income shortfalls during the year 
and a one-off contingency of £3.250m set aside specifically for Social Care 
pressures, PIP and other pressures. 

The current projected position would require use of all of the one-off contingency 
earmarked for Social Care and would leave a balance of £1.837m in the general 
contingency and £0.5m in the other contingency for the remainder of the year (see 
table in 4.1.8).   

Page 13



2025/26 Financial Monitoring Report 
 

8 

 

5.3.2 There is also a contingency amount held centrally for contractual and pay inflation.  
Any residual balance, when the pay award and inflation requirements are known, 
will be applied to support the overall position.  

5.3.3 The Budget Strategy Reserve remains at £21.7m.   

5.4 CAPITAL 

5.4.1 2025/26 Capital Programme 

The 2025/26 capital programme totals £138.6m.  The financial position is shown in 
the table below and shows projected spend at £135.7m which indicates that there 
will be some re-phasing into 2026/27 required at year end. It is early in the year and 
the programme will continue to be monitored and updates brought in future reports. 

Service Area Approved 
Budget 

Spend % Spend Year End 

  £m £m   £m 

     
Prosperity & Investment 72.96 4.79 6.57% 71.87 

Policy & Governance 0.07 0.00 0.00% 0.07 

Education & Skills 21.65 1.85 8.57% 21.65 

Adult Social Care 0.09 0.00 0.00% 0.02 

Neighbourhood & Enforcement Services 21.13 0.87 4.10% 21.13 

Hsg, Commercial & Customer Services 14.97 0.95 6.35% 13.58 

Finance, People & IDT 5.89 0.46 7.87% 5.91 

Corporate Items 1.81 0.00 0.00% 1.51 

Total 138.57 8.92 6.4% 135.74 

5.4.2 The 2025/26 capital programme is underpinned by capital receipts as part of its 
funding. Capital receipts included in the medium term budget strategy are kept 
under continual review and any changes will be reflected in future budget 
projections but are currently projected to be on target.  

5.4.3 Changes to the capital programme are shown in Appendix C for approval. 

6.0 CORPORATE INCOME MONITORING 

6.1 The Council’s budget includes significant income streams which are regularly 
monitored to ensure they are on track to achieve targets that have been set and so 
that remedial action can be taken at a very early stage.  The three main areas are 
Council Tax, NNDR (business rates) and Sales Ledger.  Current monitoring 
information relating to these is provided below.  The Council pursues outstanding 
debt vigorously, until all possible recovery avenues have been exhausted, but also 
prudently provides for bad debts in its accounts. 

  

Page 14



2025/26 Financial Monitoring Report 
 

9 

 

6.2 In summary, collection is outside the targets, however it is early in the year and work 
continues to actively pursue all income due. 

INCOME COLLECTION – MAY 2025 

 Actual Target Performance 

Council Tax Collection 18.82%  19.09% 0.27% behind target 

NNDR Collection 23.99% 24.25% 0.26% behind target 

Sales Ledger 
Outstanding Debt 

9.34% 6.00% 3.34% behind target 

 
6.3      Council Tax (£127.3m) 

This measure represents the percentage of the current year liability for council tax 
which the authority should have received during the year, as a percentage of annual 
collectable debit. The measure does not take account of debt that continues to be 
pursued and collected after the end of the financial year in which it became due.  The 
final collection figure for all financial years exceeds 99%.      
  
Year End performance 2024/25     97.1% 
Year End Target for 2025/26                                         97.3%   
  
Performance is cumulative during the year and expressed against the complete 
year’s debit.   
 

Month End Target Month End Actual Last year Actual 

19.09% 18.82% 18.97% 
   

 
 Collection rates are slightly behind target.  There are more accounts paying by 12 
monthly instalments than this time last year which should have a positive impact 
on collection rates by year end. 
 

6.4   NNDR-Business Rates (£86.8m) 

This measure represents the percentage of business rates for 2025/26 that should 
have been collected during the year.  This target, as for council tax, ignores our 
continuing collection of earlier years’ liabilities.   
  
The measure does not take into account the debt that continues to be pursued and 
collected after the end of the financial year in which it became due.  As a general 
rule the final collection figure for any financial year exceeds 99%. 
   

          Year End performance 2024/25                                 98.1% 
          Year End Target for 2025/26                                      98.1% 
  

Month End Target Month End Actual Last year Actual 

24.25% 23.99% 24.25% 

  
Collection rates are slightly behind the monthly target and performance last year, 
although this does not cause concern so early in the financial year. 

Page 15



2025/26 Financial Monitoring Report 
 

10 

 

6.5 Sales Ledger (£96.9m) 

This includes general debt and Social Care debt.  Debt below 2 months is classified 
as a normal credit period. 
  

 The target percent is set relating cumulative debt outstanding from all years to the 
current annual debit.  The targets and performance of income collection for 2025/26 
are as follows: 

 

 Annual 
Target % 

May 2025 

£m % 

Total 6.00 9.051 9.34 

 
Sales ledger performance is outside of target, although there are some larger 
organisational debts which we are working with Finance colleagues to liaise with the 
debtor to recover. 
 

7.0 Alternative Options 

7.1 Budget holders will investigate a number of options to seek to deliver required 
service outcomes from within budgeted resources.  Options to deliver savings and 
additional income have been explored. 

8.0 Key Risks 

8.1 Budget holders actively manage their budgets and the many financial risks and 
challenges that council services face, examples include the risk of a particularly 
harsh winter which would impact adversely on the winter gritting and adult social 
care budgets, the increasing dependency on income from a wide range of activities 
and the risk of interest rate movements and further inflationary pressures, the risk 
of changes in legislative or accounting requirements impacting on budgets etc.  The 
Council has comprehensive risk management arrangements in place, which are 
reviewed and updated by the Senior Management Team.   

9.0 Council Priorities 

9.1 Delivery of all Council priorities depends on the effective use of available resources.  
Regular financial monitoring in the financial management reports helps to highlight 
variations from plan so that prompt action can be taken to effectively manage the 
Council’s budget. 

10.0 Financial Implications 

10.1 The financial impacts are detailed throughout the report. 

11.0 Legal and HR Implications 

11.1 The S151 Officer has a statutory duty to monitor income and expenditure and 
ensure that the Council takes action if overall net overspends /shortfalls emerge.  
There is also a legal requirement to ensure that the statutory service provision meets 
demands. 

Page 16



2025/26 Financial Monitoring Report 
 

11 

 

11.2 Legal services will provide ongoing advice in relation to specific proposals relating 
to the making of savings, including on any requirement to undertake consultation as 
such proposals are brought forward for consideration, the impact of any proposed 
savings on the delivery of statutory services and any other legal matter arising. 

12.0 Ward Implications 
 
12.1 There are no impacts on specific wards 
 
13.0 Health, Social and Economic Implications 
 
13.1 There are no Health, Social and Economic Implications directly arising from this 

report. 
 
14.0 Equality and Diversity Implications 
 
14.1 There are no Equality & Diversity implications directly arising from this report.  

Proportionate impact assessments are carried out and a range of consultation 
mechanisms are used where appropriate. 

 
15.0 Climate Change and Environmental Implications 
 
15.1 There are no Climate Change and Environmental Implications directly arising from 

this report. 
 
16.0  Background Papers 
 

1 Medium Term Financial Strategy 2025/26 to 2028/29 Council 27/02/2025 
   

17.0  Appendices 
 

Appendix A Summary of 2025/26 Projected Variations 
Appendix B 2025/26 Revenue Variations over £50,000 
Appendix C Capital Approvals 

 
18.0  Report Sign Off 
 
Signed off by Date sent Date signed off Initials  
Director 11/06/2025 20/06/2025 MLB 
Finance 10/06/2025 20/06/2025 ER 
Legal 11/06/2025 19/06/2025 ACL 

  

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

Service Area Budget Total Current 

Variation

£ £

Finance, People & IDT
18,835,600 0

Policy & Governance 1,281,868 45,000

Adult Social Care 77,234,567 5,569,397

Housing, Commercial & Customer Services 6,252,783 0

Children's Safeguarding & Family Support 49,564,539 (4,753)

Education & Skills 14,308,065 483,367

Health & Wellbeing 827,948 0

Neighbourhood & Enforcement Services 31,611,541 972

Prosperity & Investment (6,317,526) 0

Council Wide (25,959,705) (1,231,000)

Total 167,639,680 4,862,983

0 0

2025/26 Revenue Budget Variations

P
age 19



Appendix B

£ £

Finance, People & IDT Variations under £50K 18,835,600                         0

18,835,600 0

Policy & Governance

Variations under £50k 1,281,868                           45,000

1,281,868 45,000

All long term care purchasing-Spot & 

block for all ages and short-term 

intermediate care

Spot & block purchasing 90,974,325 5,370,121 The long term care projection continues to be under significant pressure.   The trajectory of 

growth is being monitored closely. The management team continue to focus on delivering care 

which maximises prevention and independence wherever possible.

Short term reablement care & Prevention 7,132,817 0 Work continues with the ICB to reduce the pressure on the BCF budget including TWC use of 

Community hospital beds, increased therapy input and reviewing procurement of beds and 

homecare hours.   

Health funding contributions-all ages and 

care types

Joint Funding (7,486,218) 0 The team are continuing to focus on maximising joint funding contributions, including historical 

claims 

Income Client Contributions (14,195,690) (433,000) Based on current expectations of in year income.

Prevention & independence - Older 

People & Disability

Staffing & Operational expenditure 3,425,444 (93,890) Mainly from vacancies 

My Options in house purchasing In House purchasing (from My Options) 8,086,352 949,882 Increase in costs linked to increasing demand and increase in charges

Service Improvement & efficiency Staffing & Operational expenditure 1,699,487 (65,264)

Variations under £50k (12,401,950) (158,452)

77,234,567 5,569,397

Housing Strategy & Regeneration Income (424,000) 155,000 Income target shortfall; will be delivered when Housing Schemes become operational; Red Lion 

development due in Q3 of 2025/26.  There is a benefit in relation to lower borrowing costs which 

is included in the Treasury benefit reported under Finance.

Contribution from Reserves                                          -   (155,000) One off use of reserves to mitigate above pressures.

Variations under £50k                            6,676,783 0

6,252,783 0Total Housing, Commercial & Customer Services

Total Adult Social Care

Adult Social Care

2025/26 Revenue Budget Variations

Description Budget Total Variation Comments

Finance, People & IDT

Total Finance, People & IDT

Total Policy & Governance

Housing, Commercial & Customer Services

2

P
age 20



£ £

2025/26 Revenue Budget Variations

Description Budget Total Variation Comments

Children in Care, Leaving Care Team & 

Speciality Services, Family Solutions

CIC Placements, Post 18 Staying Put & Leaving Care 

Support

29,911,232 (257,445) Net (of health funding) reduction in placements budget from 2024/25 of £1.07m.  Children in care 

numbers remain stable.  Assumed costs include all known and agreed inflationary increases for 

2025/26. Projected placement costs are £1.15m or 4.4% lower than 2024/25 spend as we see full 

year impact of savings from the work with Impower and ongoing work on prevention, early 

intervention and review of placement costs.

Health funding (6,437,780) 107,154 Income currently projected in line with health income received in 24/25 by way of % of placements 

costs.  Projected to receive £187k less than in 24/25 .  Ongoing risk of funding being cut by ICB.

Children with Disabilities 2,086,020 (56,941) The realigned budget is now more realistic for this area, but there continues to be a high demand 

for support for children with disabilities.

Operational expenditure 1,360,285 39,091 Non placement related expenditure across Children in Care, Leaving Care Team & Speciality 

Services, Family Solutions

Income (1,169,550) (127,032) Difference between budgeted grant income and actual grant received

Child Protection & Family Support, 

Parenting Assessment & Contact Teams

Operational expenditure 678,270 (444)

Family Safeguarding Operational expenditure 2,102,620 (63,653)

Service Wide Staffing expenditure 20,006,882 27,465 Includes vacancy factor saving of £299,000 and historic pressure of out of hours team, offset by 

savings from vacancies across service.

Homelessness 130,000 352,944 Majority of overspend relates to accommodation (housing) costs and homelessness 

Income 0 (200,000) Includes one of use of £200k reserve to offset pressure above

Independent Review Staffing expenditure 731,420 35,184 Use of one agency staff to cover sickness

Operational expenditure 122,741 37,725 Overspends in interpreter fees 

Variations under £50k 42,399 101,199

49,564,539 (4,753)

Specialist Services 885,526                          100,000 Pressure arises from the Educational Psychology service.  Increased internal staffing will mitigate 

the pressure arising from use of external agency staff, but will not be in place until the Autumn 

and the volume of statutory assessment work means that income targets for traded services to 

schools are unlikely to be achieved

Employee Costs 1,139,024                          268,349 This policy ceased some years ago however, the local authority remains responsible for any 

historic pension costs and additional costs are due to inflationary pressures.

Insurance 25,806                            89,340 The conversion of maintained schools to academies has led to a reduction in insurance 

contributions from schools.

Variations Under £50,000 12,257,709                            25,678 

14,308,065 483,367

Children's Safeguarding & Family Support

Total Children's Safeguarding & Family Support

Education & Skills

Total Education & Skills

3

P
age 21



£ £

2025/26 Revenue Budget Variations

Description Budget Total Variation Comments

Health & Wellbeing Variations under £50K 827,948 0

827,948 0

Enforcement Income - Car Parking (56,220) 160,000  Shortfall against budgeted income from parking

Variations under £50k 709,033 (42,122)

Neighbourhood & Environmental 

Services

Variations under £50k 5,770,975 9,044

Highways, Engineering & Project 

Delivery

Supplies & Services - Street Lighting 2,111,130 70,437 Increased Maintenance Costs to be funded by special fund

Income - Use of Reserves 0 (70,437) Use of Special Fund to mitigate overspend

Variations under £50k 9,814,746 (30,000)

Strategic Transport & Highway Network 

Management

Supplies & Services - Concessionary Travel 1,653,680 (57,861) Reduction in operating costs

Variations under £50k (3,638) (100,000) Projected overachievement against budgeted NRSWA (New Roads & Streetworks Act) income

Safer & Stronger Communities Variations under £50k (2,207,585) 16,948

Waste & Neighbourhood Services Waste Treatment 13,829,430 45,046 Initial Waste pressure due to projected annual tonnage increases in disposal costs

Variations under £50k (10,010) (83)

31,611,541 972

 Variations under £50k (6,317,526)                          -                                 

(6,317,526) 0

Total Health & Wellbeing

Neighbourhood & Enforcement Services

Total Neighbourhood & Enforcement Services

Prosperity & Investment

Total Prosperity & Investment

Health & Wellbeing 

4

P
age 22



£ £

2025/26 Revenue Budget Variations

Description Budget Total Variation Comments

Corporate

Purchase Rebates (430,000)                             (242,000) Additional WMS Rebate 

Council Wide (989,000) Various council wide underspends, including additional BRR Section 31 grant and provision for 

savings not benefitting general fund

Council Wide Variations under £50K (25,529,705)                        0

(25,959,705) (1,231,000)

167,639,680 4,862,983Total

Total Corporate

5

P
age 23



APPENDIX C

Slippage

Scheme Service Area Funding Source 25/26 26/27 27/28 28/29

£ £ £ £

Climate Change Housing Commercial & Customer Services Prudential (507,989.58) 507,989.58

Affordable Housing Programme Housing Commercial & Customer Services Prudential (2,346,386.00) 2,346,386.00

All Other School Schemes Education & Skills Grant (14,328,019.36) 14,328,019.36

All Other School Schemes Education & Skills Capital Receipts (1,200,000.00) 1,200,000.00

Pride in Your High Street Prosperity & Investment Prudential (644,258.08) 644,258.08

Housing Company - Housing Prosperity & Investment Prudential (3,323,904.00) (966,031.00) (8,710,065.00) 13,000,000.00

Levelling Up Fund Prosperity & Investment Grant (6,441,054.37) 6,441,054.37

Playing Pitch Investment Prosperity & Investment Capital Receipt (500,000.00) 500,000.00

Stronger Communities Prosperity & Investment Prudential (1,000,000.00) 1,000,000.00

Towns Fund - Wellington Prosperity & Investment Prudential (38,000.00) 38,000.00

Towns Fund - Oakengates Prosperity & Investment Prudential (189,855.00) 189,855.00

Towns Fund Prosperity & Investment External (98,689.19) 98,689.19

Towns Fund Prosperity & Investment Prudential (1,331,759.79) 1,331,759.79

HE liability Sites Prosperity & Investment Prudential (700,000.00) 700,000.00

HE liability Sites Prosperity & Investment External (600,000.00) 600,000.00

Regeneration Funding Prosperity & Investment Prudential 5,284.69 (5,284.69)

Regeneration Funding Prosperity & Investment Grant (408,560.00) 408,560.00

Property Investment Programme Prosperity & Investment Prudential (2,595,925.00) 2,595,925.00

Property Investment Programme Prosperity & Investment Capital Receipts (1,151,805.00) 1,151,805.00

Property Investment Programme Prosperity & Investment External (1,197,424.00) 1,197,424.00

Capital investment Fund Corporate Items Prudential (65,367.00) 65,367.00

Managing the Funding of the Capital Programme Corporate Items Capital Receipts 2,851,805.00 (6,851,805.00) 4,000,000.00

Managing the Funding of the Capital Programme Corporate Items Prudential (2,851,805.00) 6,851,805.00 (4,000,000.00)

Efficiency Schemes Capitalisation Corporate Items Capital Receipts (2,000,000.00) 2,000,000.00

Legal Fees Policy And Governance Prudential (90,000.00) 90,000.00

ICT Investment Programme Finance, People & IDT Prudential 1,770,000.00 (1,421,000.00) (349,000.00)

(36,983,711.68) 31,042,776.68 (9,059,065.00) 15,000,000.00

New Allocation

Scheme Service Area Funding Source 25/26 26/27 27/28 28/29

£ £ £ £

Affordable Housing Programme Housing Commercial & Customer Services Grant 25,000.00

Housing Housing, Employment & Infrastructure Grant 2,862,309.00

Violence Against Women & Girls Neighbourhood & Enforcement Services Revenue (181,810.93)

Social Care Capital Grant Adult Social Care Grant (5,497.52)

ICT Investment Programme Finance, People and IDT Capital Receipts 950,000.00      

2,700,000.55 950,000.00 0.00 0.00

Capital Approvals - by Service Area

P
age 24



Business & Finance Scrutiny Work Programme 2025/26 

 
 

Page | 1  

 

Issue / Topic Brief Description Directorate Council Values/Priorities Format Meeting Comments  
 

25 June 2025 – Committee Meeting 

Terms of 
Reference 

For the Committee to 
agree the Terms of 
Reference for 
2025/26. 

Policy & 
Governance 

A community-focussed, 
innovative council 
providing efficient, effective 
and quality services. 
 

Committee 
Agenda Item 

Constitutional Function. 
 

Outcomes:  Members agreed the terms of reference for the 2025/26 municipal year. 
 

Work Programme For the Committee to 
agree the proposed 
work programme for 
2025/26. 

Policy & 
Governance 

A community-focussed, 
innovative council 
providing efficient, effective 
and quality services. 
 

Committee 
Agenda Item 

Draft work programme 
delegated to each scrutiny 
committee by SMB 19 June 
2025. 

Outcomes: Members agreed the updated work programme for the 2025/26 municipal year. 
 

Housing 
Investment 
Programme - 
Annual Update 
(Nuplace) 
 

For the Committee to 
receive an annual 
update on the 
Council’s Housing 
Investment 
Programme, 
including key 
achievements over 
the last year and 
current progress of 
delivery of the 
programme.  
 

Prosperity & 
Investment 

Everyone benefits from a 
thriving economy. 
 
A community-focussed, 
innovative council 
providing efficient, effective 
and quality services. 
 
 
 

Committee 
Agenda Item 

Standing Item.    

Outcomes: Members received a presentation on the Housing Investment Programme which outlined the progress made 
during the 2024/25 financial year.  

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 5



Business & Finance Scrutiny Work Programme 2025/26 

 
 

Page | 2  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Issue / Topic Brief Description Directorate Council Values/Priorities Format Meeting Comments  
 

17 September 2025 – Committee Meeting 

Financial 
Monitoring 

For the Committee to 
receive a report on 
the Council’s 
Financial Monitoring 
position for 2025/26 

Finance, IDT & 
People 

Every child, young person 
and adult lives well in their 
community. 
 
Everyone benefits from a 
thriving economy. 
 
A community-focussed, 
innovative council 
providing efficient, effective 
and quality services. 
 

Committee 
Agenda Item 

Standing Item. 

Outcomes: 
 

P
age 26



Business & Finance Scrutiny Work Programme 2025/26 

 
 

Page | 3  

 

 

 

 

 

Issue / Topic Brief Description Directorate Council Values/Priorities Format Meeting Comments  
 

5 November 2025 – Committee Meeting 

Growth Fund For the Committee to 
review the Council’s 
property investment 
portfolio, with a 
specific focus on 
industrial units, 
assess how it 
continues to support 
with business growth 
and economic 
development and 
highlight areas of 
improvement.  
 

Prosperity & 
Investment 

Every child, young person 
and adult lives well in their 
community. 
 
Everyone benefits from a 
thriving economy. 
 
A community-focussed, 
innovative council 
providing efficient, effective 
and quality services. 
 

Committee 
Agenda Item 

New suggestion received for the 
work programme. 

Outcomes:  
 
 

P
age 27



Business & Finance Scrutiny Work Programme 2025/26 

 
 

Page | 4  

 

 

Issue / Topic Brief Description Directorate Council Values/Priorities Format Meeting Comments  
 

6, 15, 20 January 2026 – Committee Meeting 

Medium Term 
Financial Strategy 
(Budget) 

For the Committee to 
consult on the draft 
budget & policy 
framework proposals 
published by the 
Leader and any 
alternative proposals 
developed by 
opposition groups. 
 

Finance, IDT & 
People 

Every child, young person 
and adult lives well in their 
community. 
 
Everyone benefits from a 
thriving economy. 
 
A community-focussed, 
innovative council 
providing efficient, effective 
and quality services. 
 

Committee 
Agenda Item 

To fulfil the Committee’s role as 
a consultee on the Council’s 
draft budget and to consider any 
alternative proposals.  
 

Outcomes:  
 
 

P
age 28



Business & Finance Scrutiny Work Programme 2025/26 

 
 

Page | 5  

*Item to be removed from work programme due to the conclusion of 10 year term and the number of substantive items on the work programme.  

 

 

 

 

Issue / Topic Brief Description Directorate Council Values/Priorities Format Meeting Comments  
 

11 March 2026 – Committee Meeting 

Telford Land Deal* For the Committee to  
receive an update on 
the Telford Land 
Deal, considering the 
financial impact on 
the Council and its 
value for money. 
 

Prosperity & 
Investment 

Every child, young person 
and adult lives well in their 
community. 
 
Everyone benefits from a 
thriving economy. 
 
A community-focussed, 
innovative council 
providing efficient, effective 
and quality services. 
 

Committee 
Agenda Item 

Standing Item. 

Outcomes:  
 
 

P
age 29



Business & Finance Scrutiny Work Programme 2025/26 

 
 

Page | 6  

Issue / Topic Brief Description Directorate Council Values/Priorities Format Meeting Comments  
 

To be scheduled  

Leisure Services For the Committee to 
undertake a review 
of the leisure service 
offer to better 
understand how to 
ensure the Council 
offer continues to 
remain responsive to 
resident needs and is 
operated efficiently 
and effectively. 

Prosperity & 
Investment 
 
Communities, 
Customer & 
Commercial 
Services  
 

Every child, young person 
and adult lives well in their 
community. 
 
A community-focussed, 
innovative council 
providing efficient, effective 
and quality services. 
 

Workshop New suggestion received for the 
work programme. 
 
 

Outcomes:  
 

Pride in Our High 
Street 

For the Committee to 
review the impact of 
the Pride in Our High 
Street programme 
and how the scheme 
has supported local 
businesses/traders.   
 
 
 
 
 

Prosperity & 
Investment 

Every child, young person 
and adult lives well in their 
community. 
 
Everyone benefits from a 
thriving economy. 
 
A community-focussed, 
innovative council 
providing efficient, effective 
and quality services. 
 

Committee 
Agenda Item 

Carried forward from 2024/25. 

Outcomes:  
 
 

P
age 30



Business & Finance Scrutiny Work Programme 2025/26 

 
 

Page | 7  

 

 

Issue / Topic Brief Description Directorate Council Values/Priorities Format Meeting Comments  
 

To be scheduled  

Wellington Market 
Regeneration 
 

For the Committee to 
review the Council’s 
investment into the 
regeneration of 
Wellington Market 
focusing on the 
support provided to 
businesses/traders 
and the wider 
economic impact on 
the town. 
 

Prosperity & 
Investment 

All neighbourhoods are a 
great place to live. 
 
Everyone benefits from a 
thriving economy. 
 
A community-focussed, 
innovative council 
providing efficient, effective 
and quality services. 

Committee 
Agenda Item 

New suggestion received for the 
work programme. 

Outcomes: 

P
age 31



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 Financial Monitoring 2025/26
	Appendix 1 for Financial Monitoring 2025/26

	5 Work Programme Review

